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CORDOVA CPAs LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | BUSINESS ADVISORS cordovacpas.com

INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS’	REPORT

Mr. Estevan J. Lujan
State of New Mexico
Department of Information Technology
Wayne Johnson
New Mexico State Auditor

Report	on	Financial	Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds of the New 
Mexico Department of Information Technology (the Department) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.   We also have audited the budgetary comparisons of the major capital project and 
enterprise funds presented as supplementary information, as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s	Responsibility	for	the	Financial	Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditors’ Responsibility	

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government	Auditing	Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.
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Opinion	
 
In our opinion, the financial statements, referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Department 
as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof,  and the 
respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, in our opinion, 
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the budgetary comparisons of the 
capital project and enterprise funds of the Department for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   
	
Emphasis	of	Matter	
	
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Department are intended to present the financial position, and 
the changes in financial position of only that portion of the governmental activities that are attributable to the 
transactions of the Department.  They do not purport to and do not present fairly the financial position of the State of 
New Mexico as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position, where applicable, for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
	
Other	Matters 
 
Required	Supplementary	Information	
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis on pages 11 through 19 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 

	 Other	Information	
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Department’s basic financial statements and the budgetary comparisons. The introductory section, and 
Supporting Schedule I required by 2.2.2 NMAC are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
Supporting Schedule I required by 2.2.2 NMAC is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, Supporting Schedule I required by 2.2.2 NMAC is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
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Other	Reporting	Required	by	Government	Auditing	Standards	

In accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15, 2018, on our 
consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards in considering the 
Department’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Cordova CPAs LLC 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
October 15, 2018 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis of the State of New Mexico Department of Information 
Technology (the Department or DolT) is designed to (a) assist the reader to focus on significant issues, (b) 
provide an overview of the Department's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Department's 
financial position, (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and 
(e) identify fund issues or concerns. 
 
Since the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year activities, 
resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Department's financial 
statements. 
 
This section includes information on the use of the annual report, and management's analysis of the 
financial position and results of operations for the Department. 
 
Overview	of	the	Financial	Statements 
	
The basic financial statements used for a governmental entity's fair presentation in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, include both information reported on a government-wide basis 
and information presented on a fund basis. 
 
The Department's Basic Financial Statements (BFS) are presented in four parts, in the following order: 
 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements 
2. Fund Financial Statements 
3. Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
4. Required Supplementary and Other Supplementary Information 

 
Government‐Wide	 Financial	 Statements	 The government-wide financial statements are prepared using 
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting for all activities. 
Information about the primary governmental activities and business-type activities are presented in 
separate columns with a total column that represents the total primary government. 
 
The Government-wide financial statements include two basic financial statements - a statement of net 
position and a statement of activities. These statements include the primary government but do not include 
fiduciary activities. 
 
The statement of net position presents assets, less liabilities, to arrive at net position. The difference is 
labeled "net position", not equity or fund balance. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of 
liquidity. Net position is comprised of three components: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 
restricted net position and unrestricted net position. 
 
The objective of the statement of activities is to report the financial burden of each of the reporting 
government's functions on its taxpayers. It identifies the extent to which each function of the government 
draws from the general revenues or is self-financing through fees or intergovernmental aid. Expense 
presentation in the statement of activities presents expenses of governmental activities and business-type 
activities by functions which are provided by the Department's program and general revenues.  This is 
intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of services. Revenue presentation is 
distinguished between program revenues and general revenues. There are three categories into which 
program revenues are distinguished: 

 

Charges for services - These are revenues based on exchange or exchange-like 
transactions. This type of program revenues arises from charges to   customers who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided. 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Government‐Wide	Financial	Statements	(Continued) 

Program-specific - These are revenues specific to grants and contributions. 

Program-specific capital grants and contributions -  These are resources restricted for capital 
purposes. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Department does not have capital grants and contributions. 
General revenues are all those revenues not to be reported as program revenues. General revenues 
are reported after total net expenses of the government's functions on the statement of activities. The 
governmental activities reflect the Department's basic services of administering the Information 
Technology Management Act and conducting the affairs of the Department. 

Fund	 Financial	 Statements	 The Fund Financial Statements that follow the government-wide financial 
statements report on the financial position and changes in financial position of the individual funds 
used by the Department. Funds are separate accounting entities used in government accounting to 
segregate transactions according to the sources of funding and to demonstrate legal compliance with the 
restrictions that may be imposed on those financial resources. Traditional users of governmental 
financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is on 
major funds, within each fund type. The Department uses two fund types to account for its financial 
activities: Governmental funds and Proprietary funds. 

Governmental	 funds	are used to account for the finances of the governmental activities reported in 
the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The Department uses two types of governmental funds: a 
General Fund to account for activities not required to be accounted for in other funds, and Special 
Revenue Funds to account for activities with restricted fund resources. The balance sheet and 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance are the required financial 
statements for governmental fund types. 

Proprietary	 funds	 are used to account for the Department's business-type activities. Because they 
share a common measurement focus and basis of accounting with the private sector business 
enterprises, proprietary funds use the same generally accepted accounting principles as similar 
businesses in the private sector. The Department uses one type of proprietary fund: Enterprise 
Funds. The Department's enterprise funds provide benefits to other state agencies, the federal 
government and local governments. The statement of net position or balance sheet; statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position or fund equity; and statement of cash flows are 
the required financial statements for proprietary fund types. General capital assets and general long-
term debt are reported in proprietary funds. 

Notes	 to	 the	 Financial	 Statements	The notes to the basic financial statements are essential to the 
fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations a n d , where applicable, cash flows. 
They provide detailed information to support and explain key financial information presented in the 
department-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes provide information on the activities of 
the Department, on the basis of accounting used and on accounting policies reflected in the financial 
statements, in addition to clarifying key financial information. They are integral to understanding 
the financial statements. 

Required	 Supplemental	 and	 Other	 Supplemental	 Information	 	 Supplemental information, such as 
management's discussion and analysis, statements, schedules, or other information, is information that 
the GASB has determined to be necessary to supplement the basic statements or is provided to 
demonstrate compliance with these requirements and with State reporting requirements from the Office 
of the State Auditor.	
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Financial	Analysis	 of	the	Department	as	a	Whole	

Business‐type	 Activities	Net	 Position	Table A-1 summarizes the Department’s net position for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018.  Net position for business-type activities was $98,534,184. 

Table	A‐1 

2018 2017 Change
Assets

Current Assets 54,812,656$        52,276,509$     2,536,147$    

Capital Assets, net of depreciation 49,514,400 43,061,444  6,452,956$    

Total Assets 104,327,056$      95,337,953$     8,989,103$    

Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilitites:

Current Liabilities $5,792,872 8,668,666$       (2,875,794)$   

Non-Current Liabilities -   -  -$     
Total Liabilities 5,792,872 8,668,666 (2,875,794)$   

Net Position
Net investmet in Capital Assets 49,514,400  43,061,444  6,452,956$    
Restricted 49,019,784  47,489,290  1,530,494$    

Unrestricted - (3,881,446) 3,881,446$    

Total Net Position 98,534,184  86,669,288  11,864,896$  

Total Liabilities and Net Position 104,327,056$      95,337,954$     8,989,102$    

Business-Type Activities
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Business‐type	 Activities	Changes 	 in	 Net	 Position		The Department's change in business- type net 
position for fiscal year 2018 was an increase of $11,720,639. 

Table	A‐2 

2018 2017 Change

Revenues

Program Revenues 60,173,231$        61,871,868$    (1,698,637)$   

General Revenues 155,033         68,332   86,701$       

Total Revenues 60,328,264$        61,940,200$    (1,611,936)$   

Expenses:

Enterprise Services 39,433,130  47,589,306  (8,156,176)$   

SHARE Operating 9,035,974  6,896,076  2,139,898$    

Program Support 2,809,846  3,373,068  (563,222)$      

Enterprise ERF 47  - 47$   

Total Expenses 51,278,997  57,858,450  (6,579,453)$   

Excess (deficiency) before transfers 9,049,267  4,081,750  4,967,517$    

Loss on disposal of capital assets - (21,584) 21,584$       

Internal transfers of capital assets 2,488,625 5,950,721 (3,462,096)$   

Internal transfers  182,747 - 182,747$       

Transfers in - (442,000) 442,000$       

Changes in net position 11,720,639 9,568,887 2,151,752$    

Beginning net position 86,669,288 77,100,401 9,568,887$    

Fund balances - restatement (note 16) 144,257 - 144,257$       

Fund balances - beginning, as restated 86,813,545 - 86,813,545$  

Ending Net Position 98,534,184$        86,669,288$    11,864,896$  

Business-Type Activities
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

Governmental Activities Net Position Table A-3 summarizes the Department's net position for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018.  Net position for governmental activities was $24,221,804. 

 
Table	A‐3 

	

2018 2017 Change

Assets

Current Assets 1,222,560$          1,582,091$       (359,531)$        

Capuital Assets, net of depreciation 24,220,862 29,540,094       (5,319,232)$     

Total Assets 25,443,422$        31,122,185$     (5,678,763)$     

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilitites:

Current Liabilities $1,270,422 1,517,621$       (247,199)$        

Non-Current Liabilities -                          -                        -$                     

Total Liabilities 1,270,422 1,517,621 (247,199)$        

Net Position

Net investmet in Capital Assets 24,220,862          29,540,094       (5,319,232)$     

Restricted 942                      110,022            (109,080)$        

Unrestricted (48,804)               (45,552)             (3,252)$            

Total Net Position 24,173,000          29,604,564       (5,431,564)$     

Total Liabilities and Net Position 25,443,422$        31,122,185$     (5,678,763)$     

Governmental Activities
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Governmental Activities Changes in Net Position	 The Department's change in net position for 
governmental activities for fiscal year 2018 was an decrease of $5,517,836 (Statement of Activities).  

Table	A‐4	

2018 2017 Change

Revenues

Program Revenues 377,223$    351,493$      25,730$     

General Revenues 3,315,481  6,061,798  (2,746,317)$      

Total Revenues 3,692,704  6,413,291  (2,720,587)$      

Expenses:

Public Safety Communications   5,788,907 6,906,567  (1,116,019)$      

Information Technology Management   750,261 1,002,823  (254,203)$     

Total Expenses 6,539,168  7,909,390  (1,370,222)$      

Excess (deficiency) before transfers (2,846,464)  (1,496,099)  (1,350,365)$      

Internal transfers of capital assets (2,488,625) (5,950,721) 3,462,096$     

Internal transfers out (182,747) 442,000 (624,747)$     

Changes in net position (5,517,836) (7,004,820) 1,486,984$     

Beginning Net Position 29,604,564 36,609,384 (7,004,820)$      

Fund balance - Restatement 86,272

Fund balance - beginning, as restated 29,690,836   

Ending Net Position 24,173,000$    29,604,564$    (5,431,564)$      

Governmental Activities
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

Financial	Analysis	 of	Overall	 Financial	 Position	and	 Results	of	Operations 
	
Governmental activities decreased the Department's net position by $5,517,836 and enterprise activities 
increased the Department's net position by $11,720,639. Key elements of these changes are as follows: 
 

Governmental	 Activities	 Governmental activities decreased the Department's net position by 
$5,517,836. Revenues decreased $2,720,587 due to the decrease in Radio Communications Special 
Appropriations.  Other financing uses decreased due to decreased transfers of capital assets from a 
governmental fund to enterprise fund.  Prior year transfers of capital assets were $5,950,721 and 
current year transfers were $2,488,625.   
   
Enterprise	Activities	Even though revenues decreased by $1,611,936 and internal transfer of capital 
assets decreased net position increased by $11,864,896. The increase is the result of expenses 
decreasing by $6,579,453 comparing fiscal year 2018 fiscal year 2017.  

	
Capital	Asset	 Administration	
	
Capital	 Assets	 The Department's net investment in capital assets totaled $73,735,262 at June 30, 2018. 
Amounts reflected in this category are not available to fund future spending. The Department uses these 
assets to provide services. 
 
The Department's net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018 amounts to $24,220,862 for its 
governmental activities and $49,514,400 for its business-type activities (net of accumulated depreciation). 
The capitalization policy for the Department establishes a threshold of $5,000, which is in accordance with 
State statutes.   Depreciation expense in fiscal year 2018 was $6,982,679 compared with $7,843,257 in 
fiscal year 2017. Capital assets primarily consist of radio and telecommunications infrastructure, as well as 
information technology equipment that are used primarily by governmental units within the State of New 
Mexico. The use of the equipment and infrastructure via depreciation is partially built into the rate 
structure and charged to the customers over the life of the asset. 
 
General	 Fund	Budget	and	Transaction	Highlights 
	
The Department's approved budget for the Information Technology Management Office (Fund 20370) was 
$845,100 for fiscal year 2018.  The Department expended 82% in personnel, 7% in the other categories of 
expense and the remaining 11% in other financing uses for the transfer funding to Program Support.   
 
 
Agency	Description	
	
The Department of Information Technology’s purpose is to provide leadership and oversight ensuring 
alignment with statewide strategic planning, consolidate enterprise information technology services 
duplicated within agencies and to provide information technology services and functionality to improve and 
streamline the executive branch information technology systems. The Department is organized into three 
program areas:  Enterprise Services, Program Support and Project Oversight and Compliance, also referred to 
as the OCIO.  Enterprise Services is comprised of SHARE, Compute and Communications, Public Safety 
Communications, Customer Engagement, Office of Broadband and Geospatial Initiatives (OBGI), State and Local 
Implementation Grant Program (SLIGP) and the project One Stop Business Portal (OSBP). Program Support 
includes the Office of the Secretary, Administrative Services Division and Office of Human Resources. Project 
Oversight and Compliance, or the Office of the Chief Information Officer (OCIO), includes Enterprise Project 
Management Office (EPMO), IT Strategic Planning, IT Investment Oversight and the Chief Information Security 
Officer.  
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Accomplishments	in	State	Fiscal	Year	2018	

SHARE 
Upgraded SHARE to PeopleSoft 9.2 in fiscal year 2018, with project completed on time and within budget.  
Completed State’s transition to a modernized human capital and accounting system.  Defined and implemented 
standard business practices in multiple areas of the human resources and financial domains.  Reviewed and 
retired code customizations throughout the upgrade process, exceeding the targeted 25 percent decrease in 
customizations.   

Nearly 20,000 SHARE users completed classroom and/or web-based training for the Human Capital Module 
(HCM) 9.2, for financials 9.2, or both.  The SHARE 9.2 Upgrade project exceeded the target of 75 percent of users 
completing related training.   

Enterprise Services 
Established secondary data center at Oso Grande in Albuquerque, opening was April 2017.  The Department 
purchased and installed fifteen additional racks.  As of June 30, 2018 twelve racks are fully used and the 
Department expanded capacity to twenty-four racks.  The secondary data center allowed for completion of the 
SHARE disaster recovery plan and replicating all backups to the secondary location. 

The Department continued research in fiscal year 2018 into cloud offerings and State agency use of cloud 
services.  DoIT improved the State’s private cloud, a hybrid on-premises and external cloud architecture.   

Added functionality to the Sunshine Portal that requires agencies to post notices and content related to rule 
making and public hearings.  The added functionality greatly enhanced transparency for the citizens to better 
interact with their government. 

Completed DoIT related activities as part of the overall State Payment Card Industry (PCI) compliance.  The 
result is improved security of State and customer data, as well as reducing or eliminating costs associated with 
continued non-compliance. 

Completed telecommunication review of circuits with consultant, the result was reduced telecommunication 
costs of $3 million in fiscal year 2018; and additional billing of $1.5 million in services not previously billed. 

Public Safety and Communications  
DoIT developed a conceptual plan for public safety communications during fiscal year 2018, including 
organizational re-alignment changes and funding requests needed to implement the concept. 

 Added 6 Full featured Project 25 digital radio trunking infrastructure sites in the ABQ and Santa Fe metro
areas. These sites have modernized public safety communications for DPS & New Mexico State Police and
have greatly enhanced the quality, coverage and capacity of public safety radio services in these areas.

 Added a redundant system core for the Public Safety Land Mobile Communications system at the Oso
Grande Technologies Data Center. This provides redundancy and disaster recovery for the state-wide public
safety radio system.

 Added Link Layer Authentication (Feature) to the State’s Public Safety Land Mobile Communications System
– This will enable additional security and management for system subscribers as they join the network

 Added ‘Programming Over P25’ (Feature) to the State’s Public Safety Land Mobile Communications System
– This will enable subscriber radios that are equipped with this feature to be programmed remotely over
the air thus eliminating the need for the subscriber to come into a radio shop for programming and making
the process much more efficient.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

 Purchased a new radio dispatch console system for the State Emergency Operations Center (EOC). The State 
EOC now has access to the modernized radio system core and all resources attached to the system. This is 
critical to provide emergency and disaster communications.  

 
 Based upon a review of the FirstNet/ATT proposed New Mexico State Plan, the Governor opted in to the 

National Public Safety Broadband Network (NPSBN).   
 
Administrative Services Division 
The Department’s 2017 audit resulted in an unmodified opinion, in addition the Department was able to 
resolve the two 2017 findings. The Administrative Services Division (ASD) worked jointly with the Enterprise 
Services to implement cost containment and budgetary controls in fiscal year 2018.  The efforts resulted in a 
fund balance in Enterprise Services operations budget, 20310, at the end of the fiscal year; and a reduction of 
$12.5 million in the liability due to the Equipment Replacement Fund (ERF fund 96880). 
 
The billing system replacement project resulted in a SaaS solution that has five modules, in addition to the 
module DoIT is implementing that can address IT financial management requirements.  The ASD increased the 
use of SHARE capabilities during fiscal year 2018 by using the allocation function to allocate indirect costs 
which was used to support the analysis and development of the fiscal year 2020 rates.  

 
Office of the Chief Information Officer (OCIO) and Project Oversight   
Published updated agency IT strategic plan template and guidebook on June 14, 2018, and conducted three 
classroom training sessions in June and early July 2018.  Published updated C2 form and full business case 
instructions and conducted two classroom training sessions.   
 
In April 2018 DoIT delivered IT procurement training to State procurement staff at the request of the 
Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) contract Review Bureau manager. 
 
Office of Broadband and Geospatial Initiatives (OBGI) 
House Bill 207 in the Laws of 2018 passed, naming DoIT as the Fund Administrator for a new broadband 
infrastructure fund catering to State libraries.   
 
Providing ongoing support to the Governor’s Broadband for Education Initiative in collaboration with the Public 
Education Department and (Public Schools Facilities Authority) PFSA to reduce costs t public schools for 
broadband, and increase speeds, meeting the Governor’s goal of 1 mps per student. 
 
	
State	Fiscal	Year	2018	through	2020	IT	Goals	
	

 Improve the security, compliance and resilience of state systems, networks and data  
 Modernize the State’s enterprise resource planning system - SHARE  
 Develop and mature Office of Chief Information Officer  
 Improve DoIT financial transparency and drive administrative excellence  
 Make DoIT a center of technical excellence, collaboration, and support  
 Improve interoperability and communication structure for public safety  
 Serve as focal point for broadband and geospatial initiatives statewide  

 
Request	for	Information	
	
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Department's finances for all those with an 
interest in the Department's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Information Technology, 
715 Alta Vista Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505. 
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit A-1
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

	Governmental	

Activities	

	Business-Type	

Activities	 	Total	

Assets
Current assets

1,169,002$               39,310,961$         40,479,963$         

- 15,488,621 15,488,621            
53,558 - 53,558

Investment in State Treasurer's 

    General Fund Investment Pool (SGFIP) 
Accounts receivable, net of 

    allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Due from the federal government 
Prepaid expenses - 13,074 13,074

Total current assets 1,222,560 54,812,656            56,035,216            

Noncurrent assets
   Capital assets, net of 

      accumulated depreciation 24,220,862               49,514,400 73,735,262            
Total noncurrent assets 24,220,862               49,514,400            73,735,262            

Total assets 25,443,422$             104,327,056$       129,770,478$       

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Investment in state treasurer's  general 

   fund investment pool (SGFIP) overdraft 44,206$ -$ 44,206$
Accounts payable 1,144,159 4,561,122              5,705,281              
Accrued payroll 33,253 478,737 511,990
Due to beneficiaries - 3,050 3,050
Compensated absences 48,804 749,963 798,767

Total current liabilities 1,270,422 5,792,872              7,063,294              

Total liabilities 1,270,422 5,792,872              7,063,294              

Net	Position
Investment in capital assets 24,220,862               49,514,400            73,735,262            
Restricted 942 49,019,784            49,020,726            
Unrestricted (48,804) - (48,804)

Total net position 24,173,000               98,534,184            122,707,184         

Total liabilities and net position 25,443,422$             104,327,056$       129,770,478$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Functions/Programs 	Expenses	
	Charges	for	
Services	

	Operating	Grants	and	
Contributions	

Governmental	Activities:
Broadband technology 5,788,907$               -$                                 377,223$                         
Information technology management 750,261                     -                                   -                                          

Total	governmental	activities 6,539,168                 -                                   377,223                           

Business‐type	Activities:
Enterprise services 39,433,132 50,279,039               -                                          
SHARE operating 9,036,019                 9,871,296                 -                                          
Program support 2,809,846 22,896                       -                                          

Total	business‐type	activities 51,278,997               60,173,231               -                                          

Total	primary	government 57,818,165$            60,173,231$            377,223$                         

General	Revenues	and	Transfers:

State general fund appropriation
Severance tax bond proceeds
FY18 Reversions
Investment income 
Internal transfers of capital assets
Internal transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position

Net position, beginning
Net position - restatement (note 16)

Net position - as restated

Net position, ending

Program	Revenues

STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit A-2

	Governmental	
Activities	

	Business‐Type	
Activities	 	Total	

(5,411,684)$             -$                                 (5,411,684)$             
(750,261)                   -                                   (750,261)                   

(6,161,945)               -                                   (6,161,945)               

-                                   10,845,907               10,845,907               
-                                   835,277                     835,277                     
-                                   (2,786,950)               (2,786,950)               

-                                   8,894,234                 8,894,234                 

(6,161,945)               8,894,234                 2,732,289                 

845,100                     -                                   845,100                     
2,472,022                 -                                   2,472,022                 

(1,641)                        -                                   (1,641)                        
-                                   155,033                     155,033                     

(2,488,625)               2,488,625                 -                                   
(182,747)                   182,747                     -                                   

644,109                     2,826,405                 3,470,514                 

(5,517,836)               11,720,639 6,202,803                 

29,604,564               86,669,288 116,273,852            
86,272 144,257 230,529                     

29,690,836               86,813,545               116,504,381            

24,173,000$            98,534,184$            122,707,184$          

Net	(Expense)	Revenue	and	Changes	in	Net	Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

General	Fund	

Information	

Technology	

Management	

Office	

(20370)

Radio	Communications	

(20340)

ASSETS

Investment in state treasurer's  general 

   fund investment pool (SGFIP) 43,475$                   942$                                   
Due from the federal government -                                 -                                            

Total	assets 43,475$                   942$                                   

LIABILITIES	AND	FUND	BALANCES

Liabilities
Investment in state treasurer's  general 

    fund investment pool (SGFIP) overdraft -$                               -$                                          
Accounts payable 18,614                     -                                            
Accrued payroll 24,861                     -                                            

Total	liabilities 43,475                     -                                            

Fund	balances
Spendable:
    Restricted -                                 942

Total	fund	balances -                                 942                                      

Total	liabilities	and	fund	balances 43,475$                   942$                                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit B-1
Page 1 of 2

State	and	Local	

Implementation	

Grants	

(11890)

Severance	Tax	

Bonds	Capital	

Outlay	

(89200)

Total	

Governmental	

Funds

-$                                  1,124,585$        1,169,002$             
53,558                        -                            53,558                      

53,558$                      1,124,585$        1,222,560$             

44,206$                      -$                          44,206$                    
960                              1,124,585          1,144,159                

8,392                           -                            33,253                      

53,558                        1,124,585          1,221,618                

-                                     -                            942                            

-                                     -                            942                            

53,558$                      1,124,585$        1,222,560$             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit B-1

New Mexico Department of Information Technology Page 2 of 2

Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-1) 942$                    

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of

net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds  24,220,862       

Compensated absences are not payable on June 30, 2018 and therefore are

not reported in the fund financial statements (48,804)              

Total net position (Exhibit A-1) 24,173,000$     

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

General	Fund	
Information	
Technology	

Management	Office	
(20370)

Radio	
Communications	

(20340)

REVENUES:
  Federal operating grants -$                                      -$                                          

Total	revenues -                                        -                                            

EXPENDITURES:
General Government
		Current

Personnel services 693,643                         -                                            
Contractual services -                                        92,452                                
Other costs 53,366                            -                                            

		Capital outlay -                                        16,603                                

Total	expenditures 747,009                         109,055                             

	Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenditures	 (747,009)                       (109,055)                           

	OTHER	FINANCING	SOURCES	(USES):	
State general fund appropriation 845,100                         -                                            
Severance Tax Bonds -                                        -                                            
General obligation bond proceeds -                                        -                                            
Internal transfers (out) (96,700)                          (86,047)                              
FY18 Reversion (1,391)                             (250)                                    

Total	other	financing	sources	and	(uses) 747,009                         (86,297)                              

Net	change	in	fund	balance -                                        (195,352)                           

Fund	balances	‐	beginning -                                        110,022                             
Fund	balances	‐	restatement	(note	16) -                                        86,272

Fund	balances	‐	beginning,	as	restated -                                        196,294                             

Fund	balance	‐	end	of	year -$                                      942$                                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit B-2
Page 1 of 2

State	and	Local	
Implementation	

Grants	
(11890)

Severance	Tax	
Bonds	Capital	

Outlay	
(89200)

Total	
Governmental	

Funds

377,223$                       -$                         377,223$                    

377,223                          -                           377,223                       

235,426                          -                           929,069                       
80,497                            -                           172,949                       
61,300                            -                           114,666                       

-                                        2,472,022         2,488,625                   

377,223                          2,472,022         3,705,309                   

-                                        (2,472,022)       (3,328,086)                 

-                                        -                           845,100                       
-                                        85,498               85,498                         
-                                        2,386,524         2,386,524                   
-                                        -                           (182,747)                     
-                                        -                           (1,641)                          

-                                        2,472,022         3,132,734                   

-                                        -                           (195,352)                     

-                                        -                           110,022                       
-                                        -                           86,272                         

-                                        -                           196,294                       

-$                                      -$                         942$                             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit B-2

New Mexico Department of Information Technology Page 2 of 2

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (195,352)$         

     The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement

     of activities is different because:

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in

    the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 

    estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital asset additions reported as capital outlay expenditures 2,488,625          

Depreciation expense (5,319,232)        

Transfer of capital assets from governmental activities to business-type activities (2,488,625)        

     Increase in compensated absences (3,252)                 

Change in Net Position (Exhibit A-2) (5,517,836)$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO Exhibit C-1
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

General Fund Information Technology Management Office (20370)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances
Actual 

(Budget)

Favorable 

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final to Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                       

Total revenues -                     -                     -                     -                         

Expenditures:
Current:
Personnel services 694,400 694,400         693,643         757                     
Contractual services -                     -                     -                     -                         
Other costs 54,000 54,000           53,366           634                     

Total expenditures 748,400         748,400         747,009         1,391                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures (748,400)        (748,400)        (747,009)        1,391                  

Other financing sources (uses)
Internal transfers (96,700)          (96,700)          (96,700)          -                         
Reversion expenditure -                     -                     (1,391)            (1,391)                
State general fund appropriation 845,100         845,100         845,100         -                         

Total other financing sources (uses) 748,400         748,400         747,009         (1,391)                

Net change in fund balances -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                       

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO Exhibit C-2
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

Radio Communications Special Revenue Fund (20340)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances
Actual 

(Budget)
Favorable 

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final to Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        

Total revenues -                      -                      -                      -                          

Expenditures:
Current:
Personnel services -                      -                      -                      -                          
Contractual services 92,452            92,452            92,452            -                          
Other costs 17,570            17,570            16,603            967                      

Total expenditures 110,022          110,022          109,055          967                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (110,022)         (110,022)         (109,055)         967                      

Other financing sources (uses)
Internal transfers (note 12) -                      -                      (86,047)           (86,047)               
Special appropriations -                      -                      -                      -                          
Reversion expenditure -                      -                      (250)                (250)                    

Total other financing sources (uses) -                      -                      (86,297)           (86,297)               

Net change in fund balances (110,022)$       (110,022)$       (195,352)$       (85,330)$             

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO Exhibit C-3
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

State and Local Implementation Grants Special Revenue Fund (11890)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances
Actual 

(Budget)

Favorable 

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final to Actual

Revenues:
Federal operating grants 444,000$       612,650$       377,223$       (235,427)$          

Total revenues 444,000         612,650         377,223         (235,427)            

Expenditures:
Current:
Personnel services 137,500         283,900         235,426         48,474                
Contractual services 192,300         192,300         80,497           111,803              
Other costs 79,400           101,650         61,300           40,350                

Total expenditures 409,200         577,850         377,223         200,627              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures 34,800           34,800           -                     (34,800)              

Other financing sources (uses)
Internal transfers (34,800)          (34,800)          -                     34,800                
State general fund appropriation -                     -                     -                     -                         
Compensation appropriation -                     -                     -                     -                         
Special appropriation -                     -                     -                     -                         

Total other financing sources (uses) (34,800)          (34,800)          -                     34,800                

Net change in fund balances -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                       

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Net Position
Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2018

Enterprise	

Services

(20310)

SHARE	

Operating	

(20360)

ASSETS
Current	assets:

8,574,046$         5,455,235$         
15,467,257         21,364

- -
- -

Investment in state treasurer's  general 

   fund investment pool (SGFIP)
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Prepaid expenses
Due from other funds

Total	current	assets 24,041,303         5,476,599           

Noncurrent	assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 21,502,603         28,011,797         

Total	noncurrent	assets 21,502,603         28,011,797         

Total	assets 45,543,906$       33,488,396$       

LIABILITIES	AND	NET	POSITION
Liabilities
Current	liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,206,564$         267,326$             
Accrued payroll 326,938               56,904
Due to beneficiaries 3,050 -
Due to other funds 16,343,881         3,077,964           
Compensated absences 504,797               86,920

Total	current	liabilities 19,385,230         3,489,114           

Total		liabilities 19,385,230         3,489,114           

Net	position	
Net investment in capital assets 21,502,603         28,011,797         
Restricted 4,656,073           1,987,485

Total	net	position 26,158,676         29,999,282         

Total	liabilities	and	net	position 45,543,906$       33,488,396$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-1

Program		

Support

	Fund	

(20320)

Enterprise	ERF

(96880)

SHARE	ERF	

(96870)

Total	Enterprise	

Funds

298,639$           21,721,566$       3,261,475$          39,310,961$         
-                            -                              -                              15,488,621           

13,074                -                              -                              13,074                    
-                            16,343,881         3,077,964            19,421,845           

311,713             38,065,447         6,339,439            74,234,501           

-                            -                              -                              49,514,400           

-                            -                              -                              49,514,400           

311,713$           38,065,447$       6,339,439$          123,748,901$       

58,572$              643,722 1,384,938$          4,561,122$            
94,895                -                              -                              478,737                 

-                            -                              -                              3,050                       
-                            -                              -                              19,421,845           

158,246             -                              -                              749,963                 

311,713             643,722               1,384,938            25,214,717           

311,713             643,722               1,384,938            25,214,717           

-                            -                              -                              49,514,400           
-                            37,421,725 4,954,501 49,019,784           

-                            37,421,725         4,954,501            98,534,184           

311,713$           38,065,447$       6,339,439$          123,748,901$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Enterprise	

Services

(20310)

SHARE	

Operating	

(20360)

OPERATING	REVENUES:
User fees  $         50,068,473  $           9,871,296 

Other revenues 210,566                -                              

Total	revenues 50,279,039          9,871,296            

OPERATING	EXPENSES:
Personnel services 9,294,025            1,537,819            
Contractual services 6,151,105            3,462,716            
Other costs 20,083,292          957,474                
Depreciation expense 3,904,708            3,077,965            

Total	expenses 39,433,130          9,035,974            

Operating	(loss)	income 10,845,909          835,322                

	NON-OPERATING	REVENUES	(EXPENSES):	

Investment income -                              -                              
Internal transfers of capital assets 3,975,066            9,316,559            
Internal transfers (6,213,101)          (3,460,079)          

Total	non-operating	revenues	(expenses) (2,238,035)          5,856,480            

Change	in	net	position 8,607,874            6,691,802            

Fund	balances	-	beginning 17,550,802          23,163,223          
Fund	balances	-	restatement	(note	16) -                              144,257                

Fund	balances	-	beginning,	as	restated 17,550,802          23,307,480          

Net	position	-	end	of	year 26,158,676$       29,999,282$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-2

Program		

Support

	Fund	

(20320)

Enterprise	ERF

(96880)

SHARE	ERF	

(96870)

Total	Enterprise	

Funds

 $                           -  $                            -    $                         -    $         59,939,769 

22,896                -                              -                            233,462                

22,896                -                              -                            60,173,231          

2,573,484          -                              -                            13,405,328          
22,790                -                              -                            9,636,611            

213,572             47                           -                            21,254,385          
-                            -                              -                            6,982,673            

2,809,846          47                           -                            51,278,997          

(2,786,950)        (47)                         -                            8,894,234            

-                            103,538                51,495 155,033                
-                            (1,486,441)          (9,316,559)        2,488,625            

2,786,950          3,904,716            3,164,261          182,747                

2,786,950          2,521,813            (6,100,803)        2,826,405            

-                            2,521,766 (6,100,803)        11,720,639          

-                            34,899,959 11,055,304       86,669,288          
-                            -                              -                            144,257                

-                            34,899,959          11,055,304       86,813,545          

-$                          37,421,725$       4,954,501$        98,534,184$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise	
Services
(20310)

SHARE	
Operating	
(20360)

CASH	FLOWS	FROM	OPERATING	ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers  $       48,367,116  $       10,045,853 
Cash payments to suppliers (28,494,213)       (4,682,433)         
Cash payments to employees for services (9,417,147)         (1,554,791)         

Net	cash	provided	(used)	by	operating	activities 10,455,756        3,808,629           

CASH	FLOWS	FROM	NON‐CAPITAL	
						FINANCING	ACTIVITIES

Transfers in (out) from other funds (14,408,386)       (2,045,150)         

Net	cash	provided	(used)	by	non‐capital	financing	activities (14,408,386)       (2,045,150)         

CASH	FLOWS	FROM	CAPITAL		
			AND	RELATED	FINANCING	ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets -                             -                             

Net	cash	(used)	by	capital	financing	activities -                             -                             

CASH	FLOWS	FROM	INVESTING	ACTIVITIES
Investment income -                             -                             

Net	cash	provided		by	investing	activities -                             -                             

Net	increase	(decrease)	in	Investments,	State	Treasurer	 (3,952,630)         1,763,479           

INVESTMENTS,	STATE	TREASURER,
			BEGINNING	OF	YEAR 12,526,676        3,691,756           

INVESTMENTS,	STATE	TREASURER,
			END	OF	YEAR 8,574,046$         5,455,235$         

STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-3
Page 1 of 2

Program		
Support
	Fund	
(20320)

Enterprise	ERF
(96880)

SHARE	ERF	
(96870)

Total	
Enterprise	
Funds

 $               22,896  $                         -    $                         -    $       58,435,865 
(585,325)             -                             -                             (33,761,971)       

(2,591,555)         -                             -                             (13,563,493)

(3,153,984)         -                             -                             11,110,401        

2,786,950           12,100,000        1,749,333           182,747              

2,786,950           12,100,000        1,749,333           182,747              

-                             (1,405,926)         (9,256,804)         (10,662,730)       

-                             (1,405,926)         (9,256,804)         (10,662,730)       

-                             103,538              51,495                 155,033              

-                             103,538              51,495                 155,033              

(367,034)             10,797,612        (7,455,976)         785,451              

665,673              10,923,954        10,717,451        38,525,510        

298,639$            21,721,566$      3,261,475$         39,310,961$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
43



Enterprise	
Services
(20310)

SHARE	
Operating	
(20360)

OPERATING	INCOME	(LOSS)	 10,845,909$      835,322$            

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
  to net  cash provided (used) by  operating activities
        Depreciation 3,904,708           3,077,965           
        Changes in assets and liabilities:
              (Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable (1,911,926)         174,307              
              Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable (1,879,685)         (261,993)             
              Increase in due to other state agencies (380,130)             -                             
              Increase in accrued payroll (59,217)               (3,828)                  
              Decrease in compensated absences (63,903)               (13,144)               

Total adjustments (390,153)             2,973,307           

NET	CASH	PROVIDED	(USED)	BY	OPERATING	ACTIVITIES 10,455,756$      3,808,629$         

Noncash items:
  Noncash items affecting capital assets (see note 12)

STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit D-3
Page 2 of 2

Program		
Support
	Fund	
(20320)

Enterprise	ERF
(96880)

SHARE	ERF	
(96870)

Total	
Enterprise	
Funds

(2,786,950)$       (47)$                     -$                           8,894,234$         

-                             -                             -                             6,982,673           

-                             -                             -                             (1,737,619)         
(348,963)             47                          -                             (2,490,594)         

-                             -                             -                             (380,130)             
(12,853)               -                             -                             (75,898)               

(5,218)                  -                             -                             (82,265)               

(367,034)             47                          -                             2,216,167           

(3,153,984)$       -$                           -$                           11,110,401$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE	1	- DEFINITION	OF	REPORTING	ENTITY

The Department of Information Technology (the Department or DolT) was created by the Legislature of the 
State of New Mexico under House Bill 959 in the Laws of 2007 and enactment of the Department of 
Information Technology Act. The purpose of the Act was to create a single, unified executive branch 
department to administer all laws and exercise all functions formerly administered by the Department of the 
Chief Information Officer, the Information Technology Commission, pursuant to the Information Technology 
Management Act and the communications division, Information Systems Division, Radio Communications 
Bureau and Telecommunications Bureau of the General Services Department to consolidate enterprise 
information technology services duplicated within executive agencies and provide additional information 
technology services and functionality to improve and streamline the executive branch's information 
technology systems.

The Department provides enterprise information technology services to State government's executive 
branch. This includes the communications infrastructure, the State Data Center, and oversight for information 
technology projects to help State agencies better serve the public.

Services include:

• Data center services

o Mainframe
o Open systems and UNIX systems
o Hosting and administration
o Data storage services

• Communication services

o E-mail and calendar
o Mobile phone and BlackBerry
o Radio
o Voice
o Cell phone

• Network services

o Wide area network
o Local area network
o Internet access

• Application and professional services

o Web hosting
o Application development and maintenance
o Desktop support services
o Enterprise project management
o Database administration
o Enterprise support desk
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NOTE	1	- DEFINITION	OF	REPORTING	ENTITY	(CONTINUED)

• Security services

o Firewall
o Virtual private network

• Oversight and compliance

o Agency IT planning guidance
o Project certification and oversight
o Project management guidance
o Review and approval of IT	contracts

The chief executive of the Department is the Department Secretary, who is appointed by the Governor of New 
Mexico and is a member of the Governor's cabinet. The Department's functions are administered by the 
Secretary of the Department and through the Enterprise Applications and Enterprise Network Service 
Programs. Overall support is provided by the Administrative Services Division. There are no component units 
of the Department.

The accompanying financial statements of the Department include all funds and activities over which the 
Department has oversight responsibility. Even though the Governor appoints the Department Secretary, the 
Secretary has decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to 
significantly influence operations and is primarily accountable for fiscal matters. The Department is part of 
the primary government of the State of New Mexico, and its financial data is included with the financial data 
in the State of New Mexico's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. These financial statements present 
financial information that is attributable to the Department and does not purport to present the financial 
position of the State of New Mexico.

NOTE	2	- SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Department is presented to assist in the understanding 
of the Department’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are the representation of the 
Department’s management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The financial statements of 
the Department have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to agencies of the government.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Department's accounting policies are described 
below:

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Department adopted GASB Statements No. 75, Accounting	 and	

Financial	Reporting	 for	Postemployment	Benefit	Plans	Other	Than	Pensions, No. 81, Irrevocable	Split-Interest	

Agreements, No. 85, Omnibus	 2017, No. 86, Certain	 Debt	 Extinguishment	 Issues, are required to be 

implemented for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  

The pronouncement adopted that materially affects the financial statements and disclosures of the 

Department for the year ended June 30, 2018 is GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting	and	Financial	Reporting	

for	 Postemployment	 Benefit	 Plans	 Other	 Than	 Pensions.  The requirements of this Statement improve the 

decision-usefulness of information in employer and governmental nonemployer contributing entity financial 

reports and will enhance its value for assessing accountability and interperiod equity by requiring 

recognition of the entire OPEB liability and a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense.
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NOTE	2	- SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(CONTINUED)

Financial	Reporting	Entity

The Department is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined in Section 2100, 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, but would be included in a 
state-wide Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

In evaluating how to define the Department, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all 
potential component units.  The decision to include any potential component units in the financial reporting 
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14 as amended by GASB Statement 
No. 61.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the 
government’s operations.  Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

The basic - but not the only - criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is 
the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this 
ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility 
include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the 
ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion used to 
evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion) from the reporting entity is the existence of 
special financing relationships, regardless of whether the Department is able to exercise oversight 
responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, the Department does not have any component 
units.

Use	of	Estimates	in	Preparing	Financial	Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. The Department’s estimates include the allowance for uncollectible 
accounts and useful lives of depreciable assets. 

Basic	Financial	Statements	- Government-wide	Statements

The Department's basic financial statements include both information on a government-wide basis and 
information presented on a fund basis. Government-wide financial statements include two basic financial 
statements: a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements do not include the 
fiduciary activities as they do not represent resources available to fund the Department's programs. The 
Department has no fiduciary fund activity.

Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize 
primary activities as either governmental funds or business-type. In the government-wide statement of net 
position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis 
by column, and are reflected on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which incorporates long-term assets 
and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.

The Department's net position is reported in three parts: invested in capital assets; restricted net position 
and unrestricted net position. When applicable, the effect of interfund activity is removed from the statement 
of net position in order to avoid a grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the statements.
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NOTE	2	- SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(CONTINUED)

The objective of the statement of activities is to report the relative financial burden of each of the reporting 
government's functions on its taxpayers. The format identifies the extent to which each function of the 
government draws from the general revenues of the government or is self-financing through fees or 
intergovernmental aid.

The statement of activities presents governmental and business-type activities by function. The governmental 
functions of the Department have been defined as broadband technology and information technology 
management. The business-type functions include enterprise services, SHARE operating and program 
support.

The resources and activities accounted for and reported in business-type funds permit for any activity that 
provides goods or services to other funds, departments or agencies of the primary government and its 
component units, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis when the reporting government is 
the predominant participant in the activity. Program revenues included in the statement of activities reduce 
the cost of the function to be financed from general revenues. Items not properly identified as program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Program revenues include charges to state agencies, the 
federal government and local governments for information technology services.

The Department reports all direct expenses by program in the statement of activities. Direct expenses are 
those clearly identifiable with a function. The Department does not currently employ indirect cost allocation 
systems.

Basic	Financial	Statements	- Fund	Financial	Statements

The governmental funds in the fund financial statements are presented on a current financial resource and 
modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. The 
presentation is deemed more appropriate to demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, to demonstrate the 
source and use of liquid resources and to demonstrate how the Department's actual experience conforms 
with the budget or fiscal plan. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different 
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements governmental column, a 
reconciliation is presented on the page following each statement, which briefly explains the adjustment 
necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental column of government-
wide presentation.

The financial transactions of the Department are recorded in individual funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, expenditures or expenses and 
other financing sources or uses. 

Government resources are allocated to, and accounted for, in individual funds based upon the purpose for 
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The reporting model under GASB 34 sets forth the minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, 
revenues or expenditures of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combines) for the 
determination of major funds. Due to the fund structure of the Department, all funds are considered major 
funds and are included under two types of funds: governmental funds and proprietary funds. The Department 
classifies all of its funds as major funds.
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NOTE	2	- SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(CONTINUED)

The following fund types are used by the Department:

Governmental	 Funds	 - All governmental fund types are accounted for on a spending or financial flow 
measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. 
Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of available spendable resources. 
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and, other financing sources) and 
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present 
a summary of sources and uses of available spendable resources during a period.

Due to their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types is limited to 
exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-
term amounts are not recognized as government fund type expenditures of fund liabilities.

The Information Technology Management Office (SHARE 20370) is the general operating 

fund of the Department and is used to account for all financial resources except those 

required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund is funded primarily from 

appropriations from the State of New Mexico and a budget is legally adopted for this fund. 

This is a reverting fund.

Section 15-38-16 NMSA 1978 created the Radio Communications Fund (SHARE 20340). This 
is a special revenue fund that is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
radio communications projects. This is a reverting fund.

On February 19, 2014, the Section 6-3-23 (D) NMSA 1978 and Section 9-1-5C NMSA 1978 
created the State and Local Implementation Grants special revenue fund (SHARE 11890) for 
purposes of planning and funding the national public safety broadband network through the 
completion of activities relating to the governance, consultation of FirstNet and engagement 
of stakeholders. The fund is a nonreverting fund. 

The Severance Tax Bonds Capital Outlay capital projects fund (SHARE 89200)   is used to 
account for the acquisition, improvement, alteration, or reconstruction of long-term assets 
utilizing severance tax proceeds.  This is a reverting fund.

Proprietary	Fund	Types	- Proprietary funds use the economic measurement focus and the full accrual basis 
of accounting and are used to report the Department's service activities that charge customers a fee. 
Customers include other State agencies, federal, and local governments. Like the government-wide financial 
statements, they report all assets (including capital assets), liabilities (short and long-term); revenues, 
expenses, gains and losses. They report the services included in the business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The Department uses one kind of proprietary fund, enterprise funds, 
to account for services provided to external customers.

Laws of 2007, CH 290, HB 959, transferred Enterprise Services (SHARE 20310) to the 
Department in fiscal year 2008. This division is responsible for designing, establishing and 
maintaining voice and data telecommunication systems for New Mexico state government 
and other governmental entities. This is a non-reverting fund.

Laws of 2007, CH 290, HB 959, transferred the SHARE Operating Fund (SHARE 20360) to the 
Department in fiscal year 2008. The fund accounts for the costs of operating the Human 
Resource System. The Information Systems Division provides professional technical 
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services, and the operation is administered jointly by the Department of Finance and 
Administration and the State Personnel Office. The costs are recovered through assessments, 
based on a per-employee cost, to all agencies subject to their oversight. This is a non-
reverting fund.

Laws of 2007, CH 290, HB 959, created the Program Support Fund (SHARE 20320) which 
provides financial, purchasing, budget and personnel-related services for the enterprise 
funds listed above. This is a non-reverting fund.

Laws of 2008, CH 84, HB 517, created the SHARE ERF and Enterprise ERF Funds (SHARE 
96880 and SHARE 96870) in order to plan for the expenditure of capital investments 
necessary to provide goods and services to the state and its agencies and to local public 
bodies and other enterprise customers. Replacement funds in 96880 are intended to replace 
equipment in the Enterprise Services Fund (SHARE 20310). Replacement funds in 96870 are 
intended to replace equipment in the SHARE Operating Fund (SHARE 20360). These funds 
are non-reverting funds.

Measurement	Focus,	Basis	of	Accounting	and	Financial	Reporting	Presentation

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the 
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-
like transactions should be recognized when the exchange takes place.  Non-exchange transactions, in which 
the Department gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, 
include grants and appropriations. Revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied and related costs are incurred. Appropriations are recorded at the time the 
money is made available to a specific fund.

All governmental fund statements are presented on a current financial resource and modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method, revenues and other governmental fund financial resource increments are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual - that is, when they become 
both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period ("available" meaning collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period, 
typically 60 days).

Expenditures are recorded as liabilities when incurred. An exception to this general rule is that accumulated 
unpaid annual, compensatory and certain sick leave are not accrued as current liabilities but as non-current 
liabilities. However, in the government-wide financial statements, both current and long-term are accrued. 
Expenditures charged to federal programs are recorded utilizing the cost principles described by the various 
funding sources.

In applying the "susceptible to accrual" concept to intergovernmental revenues pursuant to GASB 33, the 
provider should recognize liabilities and expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables and 
revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements including time requirements, are met. Resources 
transmitted before the eligibility requirement are met, under most circumstances, should be reported as 
advances by the provider and deferred inflow by the recipient.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result for providing information technology services to customers which 
include state agencies, federal and local governments. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the 
cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Budgets	and	Budgetary	Accounting

The State Legislature makes annual appropriations to the Department which lapse at fiscal year-end. Legal 
compliance is monitored through the establishment of a budget and financial control system which permits a 
budget-to-actual expenditure comparison. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations for each 
budget at the appropriation unit level. Budgeted appropriation unit amounts may be amended upon approval 
from the Budget Division of the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration within the 
limitations as specified in the General Appropriations Act, Laws of 2007, Chapter 28, Section 3, item N. The 
budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as legally revised during 
the year.

These procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

a. No later than September 1, the Department submits to the Legislative Finance Committee (LFC) 
and the Budget Division of the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) an appropriation 
request for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The appropriation request includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. Budget hearings are scheduled before the New Mexico House Appropriations and Senate Finance 
Committees. The final outcomes of those hearings are incorporated into the State's General 
Appropriations Act.

c. The Act is signed into Law by the Governor of the State of New Mexico within the legally prescribed
time limit, at which time the approved budget becomes a legally binding document.

d. No later than May 1, the Department submits to DFA an annual operating budget by appropriation 
unit and object code based upon the appropriation made by the Legislature. The DFA Budget Division 
reviews and approves the operating budget which becomes effective on July 1. All subsequent 
budgetary adjustments must be approved by the Director of the DFA Budget Division and by LFC.

e. Budgetary control is exercised by the Department at the appropriation unit level. Budget 
Adjustment Requests (BARs) are approved by the DFA Budget Division.

f.  Per the General Appropriation Act, Laws of 2007, Chapter 28, Section 3, item N, "For the purpose of 
administering the General Appropriation Act of 2007 and approving operating budgets, the State of 
New Mexico shall follow the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds in 
accordance with the manual of model accounting practices issued by the department of finance and 
administration." The budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting except for 
accounts payable accrued at the end of the fiscal year that do not get paid by the statutory deadline
per section 6-10-4 NMSA 1978. Those accounts payable that do not get paid timely must be paid out 
of next year's budget. Encumbrances related to single year appropriations lapse at year-end. 
Appropriation periods are sometimes for periods in excess of twelve months (multiple-year 
appropriations). When multiple-year appropriation periods lapse, the authority for the budget also 
lapses and encumbrances can no longer be charged to that budget.
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g. The original budget differs from the final budgets presented in the budget comparison statements
by any amendments made during the fiscal year.

h. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year except for those amounts related to goods and
services received by June 30.

Investments	in	State	General	Fund	Investment	Pool

The Department does not have a separate bank account and is required by statute to deposit any money 
received into the State Treasury. Balances maintained at the end of the day are pooled and invested by the 
State Treasurer. The State Treasurer issues separate financial statements that disclose the collateral pledged 
to secure these deposits, categories of risk involved and the market value of purchased investments. 
Consequently, the Department reports its share of the investment pool maintained at the State Treasurer on 
the enterprise statement of net position and the statement of cash flows. Investments are considered liquid 
investments with original maturities of less than 90 days for cash flow statement purposes.

Interfund	Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided 
or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or due to other 
funds on the balance sheets of the fund financial statements. Internal activity is eliminated at the 
government-wide statement of net position.

Capital	Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost, and include data processing, buildings, furniture, 
office equipment and machinery and equipment constructed with Department resources and acquired with 
state appropriations. They also include assets transferred from the General Services Department of the State 
of New Mexico under the provisions of House Bill 959. Capital asset additions made through governmental 
funds are recorded as capital outlay expenditures in the respective funds and recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. The Department does not own any infrastructure assets.

Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. Capital assets are 
defined in Section 12-6-10 NMSA 1978. Section 12-6-10 NMSA 1978 was amended effective June 19, 2005, 
changing the capitalization threshold of movable chattels and equipment from items costing more than
$1,000 to items costing more than $5,000. Old inventory items that do not meet the new capitalization 
threshold will remain on the inventory list and continue to be depreciated. Any items received after July 1, 
2005 have been added to the inventory only if they meet the new capitalization policy. Donated capital assets 
are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Computer software which is purchased 
with data processing computer equipment is included as part of the capitalized computer equipment in 
accordance with NMAC 2.20.1.9C (5). Transfers of capital assets between funds relate to capital outlay 
purchases in governmental funds that are used for the Department’s Enterprise Services operations. The 
capital outlay purchases in governmental funds are generally funded through special appropriations and 
severance tax bond proceeds.  Capital assets acquired by governmental and business-type funds are reported 
in those funds at cost.
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Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives with no salvage 
value. The Department estimates the useful lives on capital assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 40 years

Data processing equipment and software 4 years

Machinery and equipment 5 years

Office furniture and fixtures 7 years

Auto and trucks 5 years

Accrued	Compensated	Absences

Accrued compensated absences consist of accumulated annual leave, sick leave between 600 and 720 hours, 
and compensatory leave for employees, including the related employers' matching FICA and Medicare payroll 
taxes. Vacation and sick leave earned and not taken is cumulative; however, upon termination of employment, 
sick pay for such leave hours accumulated up to 600 hours is forfeited, and vacation pay is limited to payment 
for 240 hours. Vacation leave up to the maximum of 240 hours is payable upon separation from service at the 
employee's current hourly rate. Sick leave is payable semi-annually to qualified employees for hours 
accumulated above 600 hours at a rate equal to 50% of their hourly rate, not to exceed 120 hours each semi-
annual period. Upon retirement, payment for sick leave is limited to 400 hours accumulated in excess of 600 
hours at the 50% hourly rate. Qualified employees accumulate annual leave to a maximum of 240 hours as 
follows:

Accrual Rate                  

Per Pay Period

At Least Less Than (In Hours)

1 month 3.0 3.08

3.0 7.0 3.69

7.0 11.0 4.61

11.0 15.0 5.54

15.0 beyond 6.15

Years of Service

The current portion of compensated absences is expected to be expended during the fiscal year 2018.  
Department general fund and enterprise fund resources have been used to liquidate accrued compensated 
absences.

Pensions

The Department, as part of the primary government of the State of New Mexico, is a contributing employer to 
a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees 
Retirement Association (PERA).  Disclosure requirements for governmental funds apply to the primary 
government as a whole, and as such this information will be presented in the Component Appropriation 
Funds Annual Financial Report General Fund) and the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 
State of New Mexico.  The net pension liability is a long-term liability that is not directly related to or expected 
to be paid from the Department’s enterprise funds and therefore not reported in the Department’s Statement 
of Net Position.   Information concerning the net pension liability, pension expense, and pension-related 
deferred inflow and outflow of resources of the primary government will be contained in the General Fund 
and the CAFR and will be available, when issued, from the Office of the State Controller, Room 166, Bataan 
Memorial Building 407 Galisteo Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501.  For purposes of measuring the net 
pension liability, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
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pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the New Mexico Public Employees 
Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to /deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA, on the economic resources measurement focus 
and accrual basis of accounting, for this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are 
reported at fair value.

Postemployment	Benefits	Other	Than	Pensions	(OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the New Mexico 
Retiree Health Care Authority (NMRHCA) and additions to and deductions from NMRHCA’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by NMRHCA. For this purpose, 
NMRHCA recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. As with items related to pensions, disclosure requirements for 
governmental funds apply to the primary government as a whole, and as such this information will be 
presented in the Component Appropriation Funds Annual Financial Report General Fund) and the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of New Mexico. The net OPEB liability is a long-
term liability that is not directly related to or expected to be paid from the Department’s enterprise funds and 
therefore not reported in the Department’s Statement of Net Position. Information concerning the net OPEB 
liability, OPEB expense, and OPEB-related deferred inflow and outflow of resources of the primary 
government will be contained in the General Fund and the CAFR and will be available, when issued, from the 
Office of the State Controller, Room 166, Bataan Memorial Building 407 Galisteo Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 
87501.

Due	to	State	General	Fund	(Reversions)

The General Appropriation Act of 2007, Chapter 28, Section 3, item N, states that "For the purpose of 
administering the General Appropriation Act of 2007, the State of New Mexico shall follow the modified 
accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds in accordance with the manual of model accounting 
practices issued by the Department of Finance and Administration." In accordance with the Department of
Finance and Administration's Basis	of Accounting	- Modified	Accrual	and	the	Budgetary	Basis,	the Department 
has accrued as payables amounts owed for goods and services received by June 30, 2018. Any State General 
Fund appropriations remaining in the general fund (SHARE 20370) and special revenue fund (SHARE 20340) 
fund balance not restricted is reverted to the state general fund.

Net	Position/Fund	Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, net position consists of three components: net investment in 
capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. The Department has no debt related to capital assets; therefore, 
net position invested in capital assets equal the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are externally imposed by 
creditors such as through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a 
legal enforceable requirement that resources be only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

Legal enforceability means the government can be impelled by an external party - such as citizens, public 
interest groups or the judiciary - to use resources for the purposes specified by the legislation.
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NOTE	2	‐	SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(CONTINUED) 
 
These resources remaining in net position were received or earned with the explicit understanding between 
the Department and the resource provider (grantor, contributor, other government or enabling legislation) 
that the funds would be used for a specific purpose. 
 
Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net 
investment in capital assets. 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as non-spendable, restricted or 
unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned).  
 
Restricted represents those portions of fund balance where constraints placed on the resources are either 
externally imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The 
Department has presented restricted fund balance on the governmental funds balance sheet in the amount of 
$942 for equipment infrastructure for public safety radio communication for emergency responders. 
 
In the proprietary funds Statement of Net Position, the Department has presented restricted net position in 
the amount of $49,019,784 for capital replacement. 
 
Committed fund balance represents· amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the Legislative and Executive branches of the State.  
 
Assigned fund balance is constrained by the Legislature's and Executive Branch's intent to be used for specific 
purposes or, in some cases, by legislation. 
 
When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources 
are available, it is the State's policy to use restricted resources first. When expenditures/expenses are 
incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) resources are available, 
and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the State's policy to spend 
committed resources first. 
 
Deferred	Outflows/lnflows	of	Resources	
	
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Department did not have any items that qualified for 
reporting in this category as of June 30, 2018. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Department did not have any items that were required to 
be reported in this category as of June 30, 2018. 
 
NOTE	3	‐	STATE	GENERAL	FUND	INVESTMENT	POOL	
	
The Department does not have a separate bank account.  For cash management and investment purposes, 
funds of various state agencies are deposited in the State General Fund Investment Pool (the Pool), which is 
managed by the Office of the New Mexico State Treasurer. Claims on the Pool are reported as assets by the 
various agencies investing in the Pool. 
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NOTE	3	‐	STATE	GENERAL	FUND	INVESTMENT	POOL	(CONTINUED)	
 
By state statute, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) is responsible for the 
performance of monthly reconciliations with the balances and accounts kept by the State Treasurer. 
Therefore, under the direction of the State Controller / Financial Control Division Director, the Financial 
Control Division (FCD) of the New Mexico Department of Finance & Administration undertook action to  
address the situation. DFA/FCD initiated the Cash Management Remediation Project (Remediation Project) in 
partnership with the Office of the New Mexico State Treasurer, the New Mexico Department of Information 
Technology, and a contracted third party with expertise in the Enterprise System Software used by the State. 
 
The Remediation Project objective was to design and implement changes necessary to ensure ongoing 
completion of timely, accurate and comprehensive reconciliation of the Pool. DFA is in the process of 
implementing all the recommendations resulting for the Remediation Project and has made changes to the 
State's SHARE system configuration, cash accounting policies and procedures, business practices, and 
banking structure. This has enabled DFA to complete timely and accurate reconciliation of bank to book  
balances at the State and Business Unit level on a post-implementation basis, however it did not resolve 
historical reconciling items. Additional changes recommended by the Project continue to be cascaded through 
DFA and state agencies to support the Business Unit by Fund accounting requirements. 
 
The comprehensive cash reconciliation model which compares aggregated agency claims on the State General 
Fund Investment Pool to the associated resources held by the State Treasurer’s Office is now in its fourth 
year. This process has been reviewed multiple times by the IPAs performing audits of the General fund, the 
Department of Finance and Administration and the State of New Mexico’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. The Reviews have deemed the process to be sound and the Department fully compliant with 
requirements of the monthly process.  
 
The Department has also established daily and monthly procedures that mitigate the risk of misstatement of 
the Department's balances within the Pool. In addition, as required by Section 6-5-2.1 (J) NMSA 1978, 
DFA/FCD is to complete, on a monthly basis, reconciliation with the balances and accounts kept by the state 
treasurer and adopt and promulgate rules regarding reconciliation for state agencies.  Given these mitigating 
controls the impact of the reconciling items on the Department’s State General Fund Investment Pool account 
balances is minimal.   
 
State law (Section 8-6-3 NMSA 1978) requires the Department's cash be managed by the New Mexico State 
Treasurer's Office. Accordingly, the investments of the Department consist of an interest in the State. General 
Fund Investment Pool managed by the New Mexico State Treasurer's Office. 
 
Detail of pledged collateral specific to this agency is unavailable because the bank comingles pledged 
collateral for all state funds it holds. However, the State Treasurer's Office Collateral Bureau monitors pledged 
collateral for all state funds held by state agencies in such “authorized" bank accounts. 
 
The Department does not have a separate bank account.  The following is a summary of the Department's 
investment account of the State General Fund Investment Pool held by the New Mexico State Treasurer as 
reported by the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration (DFA): 
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Type	of SHARE Reconciled

Fund Account Fund	No. balance

General Fund Information 

   Technology Management Office Investment 20370 43,475$          

Radio Communications Investment 20340 942                  

State and local government grants Investment 11890 (44,206)          

Severance Tax Bonds Capital Outlay Investment 89200 1,124,585      

   Total governmental funds 1,124,796      

Enterprise services Investment 20310 8,574,046      

SHARE operating Investment 20360 5,455,235      

Program support fund Investment 20320 298,639          

Enterprise ERF Investment 96880 21,721,566    

SHARE ERF Investment 96870 3,261,475      

   Total enterprise funds 39,310,961    

   Total share of state general fund investment pool 40,435,757$  

NOTE	4 - ACCOUNTS	RECEIVABLE

The Department provides enterprise information technology services to State government's executive branch 
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 for the Department's enterprise funds, including the applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Enterprise SHARE Total

Services Operating Enterprise

(20310) (20360) Funds

  Gross accounts receivable 16,780,074$  93,674$          16,873,748$  

  Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (1,312,817)     (72,310)          (1,385,127)     

  Receivables, net 15,467,257$  21,364$          15,488,621$  

The allowance for uncollectible accounts consists principally of accounts greater than two years old for which 
budgetary authority and resources may not exist.
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NOTE	5 - CAPITAL	ASSETS

The capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions

Transfers to 

Business-Type June 30, 2018

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       -  $                       - 

        Total capital assets not being depreciated -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements                131,057                  23,027                         -                  (23,027)                131,057 

Autos & trucks                  59,999                         -                           -                           -                    59,999 

Machinery & equipment             2,032,242             2,446,907                         -             (2,446,907)             2,032,242 

Data processing 35,331,683        18,691               -                         (18,691)                        35,331,683 

        Total capital assets being depreciated 37,554,981        2,488,625          -                         (2,488,625)         37,554,981        

Total capital assets 37,554,981        2,488,625          -                         (2,488,625)         37,554,981        

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements                  (9,829)                (10,220)                         -                      3,668                (16,381)

Autos & trucks                (15,000)                (10,892)                         -                         891                (25,001)

Machinery & equipment              (607,184)              (722,509)                         -                  315,989           (1,013,704)

Data processing (7,382,874)         (6,274,093)         -                         1,377,934          (12,279,033)       

Total accumulated depreciation (8,014,887)         (7,017,714)         -                         1,698,482          (13,334,119)       

Capital assets, net of accumulated

    depreciation 29,540,094$      (4,529,089)$       -$                       (790,143)$          24,220,862$      

Governmental activities
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NOTE	5 - CAPITAL	ASSETS	(CONTINUED)

Transfers of capital assets in the amount of $2,488,625 relate to capital outlay purchases in governmental 
funds that are used for the Department’s Enterprise Services operations. The capital outlay purchases in 
governmental funds are generally funded through special appropriations and severance tax bond proceeds.

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions

Internal

Transfers June 30, 2018

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress  $           19,928,059  $                       -  $ (18,362,059)  $                   -  $       1,566,000 

        Total capital assets not being depreciated 19,928,059            -                        (18,362,059)  -                     1,566,000         

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 16,864,224            -                        -                    23,027           16,887,251       

Auto and trucks 38,115                   -                        -                    -                     38,115              

Machinery and equipment 32,619,609            453,134             (13,965)         2,446,907      35,505,685       

Furniture and office equipment 110,970                 -                        -                    -                     110,970            

Data processing 65,204,566            28,855,935        (1,004,569)    18,691           93,074,623       

        Total capital assets being depreciated 114,837,484          29,309,069        (1,018,534)    2,488,625      145,616,644     

Total capital assets 134,765,543          29,309,069        (19,380,593)  2,488,625      147,182,644     

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements (9,193,812)             (576,128)           -                    (3,668)            (9,773,608)       

Auto and trucks (31,405)                  -                        -                    (891)               (32,296)            

Machinery and equipment (30,300,807)           (493,636)           13,965           (315,989)        (31,096,467)     

Furniture and office equipment (110,970)                -                        -                    -                     (110,970)          

Data processing (52,067,105)           (4,214,433)        1,004,569      (1,377,934)     (56,654,903)     

Total accumulated depreciation (91,704,099)           (5,284,197)        1,018,534      (1,698,482)     (97,668,244)     

Capital assets, net of accumulated

    depreciation 43,061,444$          24,024,872$      (18,362,059)$ 790,143$       49,514,400$     

Business-type activities
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NOTE	5	- CAPITAL	ASSETS	(CONTINUED)

Depreciation was charged to the function/programs of the Department as follows: 

Governmental activities:

  Broadband Technology 5,319,232$   

     Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 5,319,232$   

Business-type activities:

Enterprise Operating 3,904,710$   

SHARE Operating 3,077,969     

     Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 6,982,679$   

NOTE	6 - INTERNAL	BALANCES

The purpose of all internal balances is to record the services the program support fund provides to the 
Department's enterprise funds and to record the amount due to equipment replacement funds. All interfund 
balances are expected to be settled within one year.

Due from and due to other funds as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Due from Due to

Business-type activities:

Enterprise Services (20310) -$                      16,343,881$   

SHARE Operating (20360) -                        3,077,964       

SHARE ERF (96870) 3,077,964       -                        

Enterprise ERF (96880) 16,343,881     -                        

Grand total 19,421,845$   19,421,845$   
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NOTE	7 - DUE	FROM	/	TO	OTHER	AGENCIES

No amounts were due from or to other state agencies as of June 30, 2018.

NOTE	8 - CHANGES	IN	LONG-TERM	LIABILITIES

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018

Due within 

one Year

Compensated absences 45,552$       49,936$       46,684$       48,804$       48,804$       

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018

Due within 

one Year

Compensated absences 832,228$     902,914$     985,179$     749,963$     749,963$     

Governmental	activities

Business-type		activities

Compensated absences payable - The compensated absence liability of the governmental funds is expected to 
be liquidated by the General Fund. The compensated absence liabilities of the enterprise funds are expected 
to be liquidated by the respective enterprise funds.

NOTE	9 - PENSION	PLAN	- PUBLIC	EMPLOYEES	RETIREMENT	ASSOCIATION

Compliant with the requirements of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the State of New Mexico has implemented the standard for fiscal years
ending June 30, 2017 and 2018.  The Department, as part of the primary government of the State of New 
Mexico, is a contributing employer to a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA).

Disclosure requirements including schedules of required supplementary information and related notes for 
governmental funds apply to the primary government as a whole, and as such this information will be 
presented in the Component Appropriation Funds Annual Financial Report General Fund and the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of New Mexico.  The net pension liability is a 
long-term liability that is not directly related to or expected to be paid from the Department’s enterprise 
funds and therefore not reported in the Department’s Statement of Net Position.  Information concerning the 
net pension liability, pension expense, and pension-related deferred inflow and outflow of resources of the 
primary government will be contained in the General Fund and the CAFR and will be available, when issued, 
from the Office of the State Controller, Room 166, Bataan Memorial Building 407 Galisteo Street, Santa Fe, 
New Mexico, 87501. 
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NOTE	10	‐	POST‐EMPLOYMENT	BENEFITS	‐	STATE	RETIREE	HEALTH	CARE	PLAN	
	
Compliant with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State of New Mexico has 
implemented this standard for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 

The (Department, Agency, Commission, etc.), as part of the primary government of the State of New Mexico, is 
a contributing employer to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment health care 
plan that provides comprehensive group health insurance for persons who have retired from certain public 
service positions in New Mexico. The other postemployment benefits (OPEB) Plan is administered by the 
Retiree Health Care Authority of the State of New Mexico. Overall, total OPEB liability exceeds OPEB Plan net 
position resulting in a net OPEB liability. The State has determined the State’s share of the net OPEB liability 
to be a liability of the State as a whole, rather than any agency or department of the State and the liability will 
not be reported in the department or agency level financial statements of the State. All required disclosures 
will be presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of New Mexico. 

Information concerning the net liability, benefit expense, and benefit-related deferred inflows and deferred 
outflows of resources of the primary government will be contained in the State of New Mexico 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2018 and will be available, when 
issued, from the Office of the State Controller, Room 166, Bataan Memorial Building, 407 Galisteo Street, 
Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501. 
 
The Department's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016 were 
$191,596, $212,235, and $210,086, respectively, which equal the required contributions for each year. 
	
NOTE	11	‐	COMMITMENTS	AND	CONTINGENCIES	
	
Operating	Leases	
	
The Department has commitments greater than one year in duration for vehicles, office space and equipment 
under operating lease agreements. These leases are considered for accounting purposes to be operating 
leases. Lease expenditures/expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018 excluding 1-year equipment and 
vehicle leases totaled approximately $255,875. 
 
The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease rental payments required under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining non-cancellable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2018. 
 
Year ending June 30: 

Amount

2019 353,202$      
2020 347,573         
2021 351,030         
2022 315,311         
2023 245,536         

Total 1,612,652$   

 
There is no lease liability beyond 2023. 
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NOTE	11	- COMMITMENTS	AND	CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Risk	Management

The Department obtains coverage through the Risk Management Division of the State of New Mexico General 
Services Department. This coverage includes liability and civil rights, property, vehicle, employer bond, 
workers' compensation, group insurance and state unemployment. The coverages are designed to satisfy the 
requirements of the State Tort Claims Act. All employees of the Department are covered by blanket fidelity 
bond up to $5,000,000 with a $1,000 deductible per occurrence by the State of New Mexico for the period July 
1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. There have been no settlements in excess of insurance coverage as of June 30, 
2018.

Federal	Grants

The Department receives federal grants for various specific purposes. These grants are subject to audit, which 
may result in requests for reimbursements to granting agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms 
of the grants.  There were no such disallowances as of June 30, 2018.  The Department was owed $53,558 in 
requests for reimbursement as of June 30, 2018 which is approximately 100% of receivables for 
governmental activities at June 30, 2018.
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NOTE	12	‐	INTERFUND	TRANSFERS	
	
The following amounts were transferred between funds within the Department's fund structure for purposes 
of covering the cost of program support, to record amounts due to the equipment replacement, and Transfers 
of capital assets between funds are detailed below. 
 

Transfers in Transfers out

Enterprise Services (20310) -$                    2,308,393$   
SHARE Operating (20360) -                      382,115         
General Fund Information Technology 
Management Office (20370) -                      96,700           
Radio Communications (20340) -                      86,047           

       Enterprise ERF (96880) 3,904,716     -                       
Enterprise Services (20310) -                      3,904,708      
SHARE ERF (96870) 86,297           -                       

Program Support Fund (20320) 2,786,950     -                       
6,777,963     6,777,963      

       Severance Tax Bonds Capital Outlay (89200) -                      2,472,022      
       Enterprise ERF (96880) -                      1,486,441      

Radio Communications (20340) -                      16,603           
Enterprise Services (20310) 3,975,066     -                       

3,975,066     3,975,066      

SHARE ERF (96870) -                      9,460,816      
SHARE Operating (20360) 9,460,816     -                       

9,460,816     9,460,816      

SHARE ERF (96870) 3,077,964     -                       
SHARE Operating (20360) -                      3,077,964      

3,077,964     3,077,964      

SHARE ERF (96870) 144,257         -                       
Enterprise Services (20360) -                      144,257         

144,257         144,257         

Grand total 23,436,066$ 23,436,066$ 

 
 
In fiscal year 2017, 2017 House Bill 2 provided a Supplemental Appropriation from the SHARE ERF fund to 
cover a projected shortfall in Enterprise Services. Section 6 of the bill states that “any unexpended balances 
remaining at the end of fiscal year 2017 shall revert to the appropriate fund.” At the end of FY17, $86,279 was 
established as an accrued payable in connection with this appropriation. In FY18, it was determined that the 
accrued payable was no longer needed. As a result, the accrued payable was reversed and the unused funds 
were returned to the SHARE ERF fund. The return of funds is classified as Other Financing Sources and Uses 
since it was within the same Agency and not to DFA.	
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NOTE	13	‐	TRANSFERS	FROM	OTHER	AGENCIES		
 
Please refer to the schedule of appropriations and severance tax bond proceeds (schedule I) for the status of 
special appropriations and severance tax bond proceeds as well as more details regarding the purpose for 
which they were appropriated. 
 

Department 
Fund Agency

Agency 
Number

Fund 
Number Amount Purpose

Governmental funds:
89200 DFA 34103 20610 58,556$       Severance Tax Bonds
89200 DFA 34103 50230 26,942         Severance Tax Bonds
89200 DFA 34103 50330 2,386,524    General Obligation Bond

Subtotal (89200) 2,472,022    

20370 DFA 34101 85300 845,100       General fund appropriation

Subtotal (20370) 845,100       

Total governmental funds 3,317,122$ 

 
NOTE	14 ‐	SUBSEQUENT	EVENTS	
 
The date to which events occurring after June 30, 2018, the date of the most recent statement of net position, 
have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures is October 15, 2018, 
which is the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.  No events were noted for 
disclosure. 
	
NOTE	15 ‐	RESTRICTED	NET	POSTION	
 
The Department’s statement of net position shows net position restricted by enabling legislation of $942 for 
constructing and equipment infrastructure for public safety radio communication for emergency responders, 
and $49,019,784 for capital replacement. 
 
NOTE	16	–	PRIOR	PERIOD	ADJUSTMENTS	
	
The Department has prior period adjustments in the Radio Communications Fund (20340) in the amount of 
$86,272. This adjustment was necessary to correct an error in an overstatement of accounts payable and 
expense in prior year. See note 12 for additional transfer information related to this adjustment. 
 
The Department has prior period adjustments in the SHARE Operating Fund (20360) in the amount of 
$144,257, to correct errors in capital assets from prior years.  
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Severance Tax Bonds Capital Outlay Capital Projects Fund  (89200)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)

Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
Other revenue -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           

Total	revenues -                             -                             -                              -                             

Expenditures:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits -                             -                             -                              -                             

Contractual services 23,090                 23,090                 22,500                  590                       
Other costs 144,832               5,144,832           2,449,522 2,695,310           

Total	expenditures 167,922               5,167,922           2,472,022            2,695,900           

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	

expenditures (167,922)             (5,167,922)         (2,472,022)           2,695,900           

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers -                             -                             -                              -                             
General obligation bond proceeds 167,922               5,167,922           2,472,022            (2,695,900)         
Miscellaneous revenue -                             -                             -                              -                             
Compensation appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) 167,922               5,167,922           2,472,022            (2,695,900)         

Net	change	in	fund	balances -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise Services Enterprise Fund (20310)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)
Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
User fees 48,767,000$       48,767,000$       50,068,473$        1,301,473$          
Other revenues -                              -                              210,566                 210,566                

Total	revenues 48,767,000          48,767,000          50,279,039           1,512,039            

Expenses:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits 10,647,900          10,647,900          9,294,025             1,353,875            
Contractual services 6,437,500            6,437,500            6,151,105             286,395                
Other costs 27,070,900          27,070,900          20,083,292           6,987,608            

Total	expenses 44,156,300          44,156,300          35,528,422           8,627,878            

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenses 4,610,700            4,610,700            14,750,618           10,139,917          

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers (4,610,700)          (4,610,700)          (2,308,394) 2,302,306            
State general fund appropriation -                              -                              -                               -                              
Compensation appropriation -                              -                              -                               -                              
Special appropriation -                              -                              -                               -                              

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) (4,610,700)          (4,610,700)          (2,308,394)            2,302,306            

Change	in	net	position -$                            -$                            12,442,224$        12,442,223$       

Change in net position (budgetary basis) 12,442,224$        

Depreciation expense (3,904,708)            

Adjustment to internal balances for equipment replacement (3,904,708)

Internal transfers of capital assets 3,975,066             

Change in net position GAAP basis 8,607,874$           

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SHARE Operating Enterprise Fund (20360)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)

Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
User fees 8,818,500$         8,818,500$         9,871,296$          1,052,796$         

Total	revenues 8,818,500           8,818,500           9,871,296            1,052,796           

Expenses:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits 2,113,000           1,713,000           1,537,819            175,182               
Contractual services 2,430,000           3,830,000           3,462,716            367,284               
Other costs 967,100               967,100               957,474                9,625                    

Total	expenses 5,510,100           6,510,100           5,958,009            552,091               

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenses 3,308,400           2,308,400           3,913,287            1,604,887           

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers (3,308,400)         (3,308,400)         (382,114)              2,926,286           
State general fund appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Compensation appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Special appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Designated cash -                             1,000,000           -                              (1,000,000)         

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) (3,308,400)         (2,308,400)         (382,114)              2,926,286           

Change	in	net	position	 -$                           -$                           3,531,173$          4,531,173$         

Change in net position (budgetary basis) 3,531,173$          

Depreciation expense (3,077,965)           

Adjustment to due to other funds for equipment replacement (3,077,965)

Internal transfers of capital assets 9,316,559            

Change in net position GAAP basis 6,691,802$          

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit E-4
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

Program Support Fund Enterprise Fund (20320)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)

Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
User fees -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           
Other revenues -                             -                             22,896                  22,896                 

Total	revenues -                             -                             22,896                  22,896                 

Expenses:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits 2,741,200           2,741,200           2,573,484            167,716               
Contractual services 33,000                 33,000                 22,790                  10,210                 
Other costs 276,400               276,400               213,572                62,828                 

Total	expenses 3,050,600           3,050,600           2,809,846            240,754               

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenses (3,050,600)         (3,050,600)         (2,786,950)           263,650               

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers 3,050,600           3,050,600           2,786,950            (263,650)             
State general fund appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
FY17 Reversions -                             -                             -                              -                             
Special appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) 3,050,600           3,050,600           2,786,950            (263,650)             

Change	in	net	position -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit E-5
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

Enterprise ERF Enterprise Fund (96880)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)

Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
User fees -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           
Other revenues -                             -                             -                              -                             

Total	revenues -                             -                             -                              -                             

Expenses:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits -                             -                             -                              -                             
Contractual services -                             -                             -                              -                             
Other costs 2,101,700           2,101,700           1,486,488            615,212               

Total	expenses 2,101,700           2,101,700           1,486,488            615,212               

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenses (2,101,700)         (2,101,700)         (1,486,488)           615,212               

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers 2,101,700           2,101,700           3,904,716            1,803,016           
Prior year fund balance -                             -                             -                              -                             
Compensation appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Investment income -                             -                             103,538                103,538               

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) 2,101,700           2,101,700           4,008,254            1,906,554           

Change	in	net	position -$                           -$                           2,521,766$          2,521,766$         

Change in net position (budgetary basis) 2,521,766$          

GAAP Adjustment for capital outlay (1,486,441)           

Internal transfers of capital assets 1,486,441            

Change in net position GAAP basis 2,521,766$          

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO Exhibit E-6
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position-Budget (Budget  Basis) and Actual 

SHARE ERF Enterprise Fund (96870)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variances

Actual	(Budget)

Favorable	

(Unfavorable)
Original Final Basis Final	to	Actual

Revenues:
User fees -$                           -$                           -$                            -$                           
Other revenues -                             -                             -                              -                             

Total	revenues -                             -                             -                              -                             

Expenses:
Current:
Personnel services and  employee benefits -                             -                             -                              -                             
Contractual services 2,898,300           9,498,300           9,316,559            181,741               
Other costs -                             -                             -                              -                             

Total	expenses 2,898,300           9,498,300           9,316,559            181,742               

Excess	(deficiency)	of	revenues	over	expenses (2,898,300)         (9,498,300)         (9,316,559)           181,742               

Other	financing	sources	(uses)
Internal transfers 2,898,300           2,898,300           3,164,261            265,961               
State general fund appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Compensation appropriation -                             -                             -                              -                             
Investment income -                             -                             51,495                  51,495                 
Designated cash -                             6,600,000           -                              (6,600,000)         

Total	other	financing	sources	(uses) 2,898,300           9,498,300           3,215,756            317,456               

Change	in	net	position	(designated	cash) -$                           -$                           (6,100,803)$        499,197$            

Change in net position (budgetary basis) (6,100,803)$        

GAAP Adjustment for capital outlay 9,316,559            

Internal transfers of capital assets (9,316,559)           

Change in net position GAAP basis (6,100,803)$        

Budgeted	Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SUPPORTING	SCHEDULES
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Appropriation	 SHARE

Description Authority Period Fund

To plan, design, acquire, purchase and 

implement infrastructure for public 

safety communications statewide for 

improved communication equipment 

affecting all emergency responders. Laws 2014, Chap. 66, Sec. 20, Item 2 2015-2018 89200

To plan, design, construct, and equip 

infrastructure for public safety radio 

communications for emergency 

responders statewide. Laws 2015, SS, Chapter 3, Sec. 26, Item 1 2016-2019 89200

To plan, design, construct and equip 

infrastructure for public safety radio 

communications for emergency 

responders statewide. Laws 2015, SS, Chapter 3, Sec. 71 2016-2019 20340

To stabilize and upgrade the radio 

communication infrastructure Laws 2016, Chapter 81, Sect. 10, Item D (2) 2018-2021 89200

To continue the development of the one 

stop business portal. Laws 2016, Chap. 11, Sec.7, Item 10 2018 20340

STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO

Schedule of Special Appropriations and Severance Tax Bond Proceeds

New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Year Ended June 30, 2018

See independent auditors' report.
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Schedule I

Total	Appropriations Current	Year	 Previous	Year's Unexpended Unexpended 	Restricted	Fund

or	Bond	Proceeds Expenditures Expenditures Portion and	Reverted Balance

5,000,000$                        58,556$            4,940,859$        585$                 -$                          -$                             

3,200,000$                        26,942$            3,091,220$        81,838$           -$                          -$                             

1,000,000$                        16,604$            982,454$           942$                 -$                          942$                       

5,000,000$                        2,386,524$      2,613,476$     -$                          -$                             

600,000$                            92,452$            507,548$           -$                       -$                          -$                             

See independent auditors' report.
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COMPLIANCE	SECTION
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CORDOVA CPAs LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | BUSINESS ADVISORS cordovacpas.com

REPORT	ON	INTERNAL	CONTROL	OVER	FINANCIAL	REPORTING	
AND	ON	COMPLIANCE	AND	OTHER	MATTERS	BASED	ON	AN	AUDIT	OF	FINANCIAL	

STATEMENTS	PERFORMED	IN	ACCORDANCE	WITH	GOVERNMENT	AUDITING	STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS’	REPORT

Mr. Estevan J. Lujan
State of New Mexico
Department of Information Technology
Wayne Johnson
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited,  in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government	Auditing	Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the budgetary comparisons of the New Mexico Department of 
Information Technology (the “Department”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements, and 
related budgetary comparisons presented as supplementary information, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 15, 2018.  

Internal	Control	Over	Financial	Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Department’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control.

A deficiency	in	internal	control	exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material	weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Department’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant	
deficiency	is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governances.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a significant deficiency as 
item 2018-001.
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Compliance	and	Other	Matters	
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results 
of our tests did not disclose instances of noncompliance or other matter that are required to be reported 
under Government	Auditing	Standards. 
 
The	Department’s	Responses	to	the	Findings	
	
The Department’s responses to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and responses. The Department’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  
 
Purpose	of	this	Report	
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government	Auditing	Standards in considering the Department’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

	

Cordova CPAs LLC 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
October 15, 2018 
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Schedule of Findings and Responses
June 30, 2018

Schedule II
Page 1 of 2

SECTION	I	– SUMMARY	OF	AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial	Statements:

1. Type of auditors’ report issued Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

a. Material weaknesses identified? None Noted

b. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

c. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? None Noted
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STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO	
New Mexico Department of Information Technology 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
June 30, 2018 

 

Schedule II 
Page 2 of 2 

SECTION	II	–	PRIOR	YEAR	AUDIT	FINDINGS	
	
FS	2017‐001	Procurement	Noncompliance	(Material	Noncompliance)	(Resolved)	
	
FS	2017‐002	Excessive	Overtime	Compensation	(Significant	Deficiency)	(Resolved) 

   
 
SECTION	III	–	FINANCIAL	STATEMENT	FINDINGS	
 
2018‐001	Improper	Internal	Controls	over	Voucher	Payments	(Significant	Deficiency)			
 
Condition:  During our examination of procurement transactions by the Department during fiscal year 2018, we noted 
that there was insufficient review of utility invoices before payment was made. The Department paid utility invoices 
without proper review of charges to ensure they were proper, related to Department business operations, and to 
ensure credits issued by the vendor in the past was properly rolled from month to month. This weakness resulting in 
$19,041.49 of credits being issued to the Department in fiscal year 2018 by the vendor. 
 
Criteria:		Per DFA’s Model of Accounting Practices (MAPS July 2018) “Internal Control Framework 0.9.1.2” referencing 
“NMSA 1978 6-5-8 Vouchers (2003),” “All claims for payment of public money shall be made upon a public voucher. 
All public vouchers shall be in the form and contain the information required by the division. All purchase vouchers 
for goods and services, ………. shall be accompanied by supporting invoices and documentation required by the 
division. ……………All vouchers shall be certified as true and correct by the officer or employee designated to approve 
payments of claims against state agencies and local public bodies.”	
	
Effect:		The Department paid for services that were for other entities, services for lines or accounts that were inactive 
in previous months, and did not properly track small credits that were issues to the Department to ensure they were 
used to offset future charges. 
	
Cause:		The Department’s staff in charge of reviewing invoices for services did not properly review the invoices to 
ensure the charges were proper and that credits properly rolled forward from prior months.   
 
Auditors’	Recommendation:		We recommend the Department implement an efficient process to be able to determine 
what lines or accounts the Department has in their name, an efficient process to track lines or accounts that have been 
deactivated, and to implement an effective process to properly review credits from prior months to ensure they are 
properly applied against current month charges.     
 
Agency’s	Response:		Management agrees.  During fiscal year 2018 the Department implemented processes to review 
and reconcile CenturyLink invoices.  The credits are the result of the more than a year of work by a Telecom Advisory 
consultant, CliftonLarsonAllen, and the Department staff finding cost savings.  In addition, the Department worked 
with CenturyLink to move all accounts to summary billing and have all invoices available for download through the 
on-line portal.  The Department is now able to reconcile all CenturyLink accounts on a monthly basis and verify 
balance forward amounts and any pending credits.  The Department is in the process of implementing the same 
controls with other vendor invoices.   The Chief Financial Officer is the responsible party of the corrective action plan, 
and DoIT estimates implementing the additional vendor invoice controls by June 30, 2019. 
 

84



STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO
New Mexico Department of Information Technology

Other Disclosures
June 30, 2018

OTHER	DISCLOSURES

Exit	Conference

An exit conference was held on October 12, 2018.  The following individuals were in attendance.

Representing	New	Mexico	Department	of	Information	Technology

Estevan J. Lujan Acting Cabinet Secretary
Donna Sandoval Chief Financial Officer and ASD Director
Douglas Taylor GL Bureau Chief
Cassandra Hayne Acting Chief of Staff

Representing	Cordova	CPAs	LLC

Robert Gonzales, CPA Engagement Principal
Robert Cordova, CPA Principal

Auditor	Prepared	Financial	Statements

Cordova CPAs LLC prepared the GAAP-basis financial statements and footnotes of the Department from the original 
books and records provide to them by the management of the Department.  The responsibility for the financial 
statements remains with the Department.
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